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In Re Leo [, Frank, Fulton Superior Court, Sentenced to be exeeutad, 4
June 22nd, 1915, S <&
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Saturday, April R26th, 1913, was Hemorial Day in Ge;orgia. and & gen- Q/)%
eral noliday, At that time Uary Phagan, a white girl, of about 14 years of ‘O

age was in the employ of the Eaﬁional?énéil Company i;::ca.tad near the ocorner '
of Forsyth &/ﬂunter Ste, in the City of &tianta, She cape to the Pencil |
Factory a little after moon to c-btain the monez;-due her for her work on |
the preceding lionday, and Leo Ju,, Fra.mc y the: dafendant, paid her $:L 20, the
amount due her and thia was the la.st time she was ssen alive.

Frank was tried’ for tyhe offense and found guilty the succeading August

Application 1s now made to me for clemency,

This case has ‘baan the suject of extensive aomenus through the news- |

-

papers of the United States;amd has occas:.oned the transmission of over

1004000 letters from various States Tequesting clemenoy, X¥E Hany comnuni-—

l.

ca.tionﬂ nave been received from citizens of this State advuca.rring or oypos—

ing interference with the 5ent-enca of the court,

I desire to say in thnis connection that the people of the State of
Georgia desire the esicem and good will of tne people of every Sta.‘té in

the Uﬁion, Tvery citizen wishes the approbation of his fellows and a
State or Nation is not excepted, In the preamble to the Declaration of !

Independence, Thomas Jsfferson wrote that "When in the com’se" of_hman eventﬂ!
!

it becomes neceﬂﬁarv for one people 'r.o dissolys the political bands which i
heve connected them with another, and tn assums among the pnwez:s of tne
earth the separate and equal station to which the Laws of Wature and of

Waturets God entitles ‘b‘nem' 4= 2 degsnt respect to the opinions of man-

7
¥ind requires that they should declare the causes wnich impel them to
il _
the separatioi,

liany newspapers and ltitudes of people have attacked the State

of Georgia, because of the conviction of Lieo i, Frank and have declared the

conviction to have been through the domination of a mob and with no evidence

to support the verdict, This opinion has been formed to a great extent by

those who have not read the evidence and who are unecguainted with the

judicizl procedure in oux State,.

I have been unable to ever}\a large somigex proportion of the lettsxs

sent me, because of their number and decause I could not through them gain
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any assistance in déatermining my duty, 4’@
The murder committed was a mogh neinous ons, A young girl was S
strangled to death by a cord tied arvound ner throat and the offendsx
deserves the punishment of death, ; The only gquestion is as to the ident-
ity of the criminal, X
- The respineibility is upon the people of Georgia to protect the
lives of her citizens and to maintain the dignity of hér laws, and if the
choice ¥smzde must be made between the approbation of citizens of other
St-a.tes and the enforcement of our laws againsy of fenders whether powerful

or weak, we must choose the latter alternative,

10ES,

1t is charged that the court end jury were terrorized Ty a lob
and the jury were coerced into their wverdict. ;

I expect to present tne facts in this case with absolute fair=
nesa and toe state conditions with regérd only to the trﬁbh_ o

When Frank was indicted and the air was filled with rumors s %0
the murder and mutilation of the dead girl, there was intense feeling
and to such extent that my predecessor, Governor Brown, stapf;d in argu-
ment befors me that he had the ilitary ready to protect the” Jums in 3
gzse ine event any attack was mede, No such attack was made and from
the evidence that he obfa.inﬂc.!. norle was contemplated, ;

Some weeks after this, defendant was put on triagl, Geoxgia px-nn-
ably has the broadest provisions for change of venus in criminal cases
that exist in any s‘ca.te. Our law permits the Judge to cha.nge ‘the venue
on his own motion, in the event he thinks a fair trial cannot be given
in any county, The def dndant can move for & chamge of venue on the same
groimd, and if it be refuserl, the refusal of the juﬁge iz subject to an
imadiatﬂ appeal to the Suprame Court, and in fac-.t, the ent:.ra gem.ua of
our law g,g-&he—gaeand-——ﬂf fair trial ebsolutely free from external influ~

eNCE,

Frame went to tradl without asking & change of venue and submitted
Wis Ezae gRuse case to a Jury that was acoeptable to nim, He was b1y

represented by cuunself of conspicuous apility and sxperience.

During the progrefds of the cuse, ai'ua'r" evidence ha.:i peen introduced

Inying the crime with many orrensive details Upen F¥ERL, the feeling
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against him became Imskexss intense, He was the EExWEY general super—ééb

infendent of the Factory Emd-I\.‘E&I‘:T Phagan was a poor working n’:.:r:-J..,r He &as (

a O5¥nell graduate a.a sas aependent i:;;n her li'vfllhond upon her labor, ®0,<\
Acgording to a witness, whose testimony will-aubseqmnul,; ve related more /é/)
oan'ple{‘.ely, when this éirl came to get her small pay, since she only worked %O@)

one day in the week, veeause of lack of matsrial, this general superlntand—
ent solicited ner to yield to his importunities and. on her refusal slew her

The relation of these fa.cts a.nywhere and in any communlty would
exeite un'boundad condemnation, -

Tf the audience in the court room manifested their deep resentment
toward Frank, it was lai'gely by this evidence Qf feeling beyond the powexr
of é.. court to correct, It would be difficult anywhere for an appsllé.te
couﬁﬁ, or even & trial court, to gran-l:'a new trizl in a case which océ@ied
thir'b},_r days, because the a.udience iﬁ the court ro_om_upt'::n a few c—cca.siona-
indicated tneir sympatnies,  Howsver, the deep feeling against Trank
which developed in the progress of thé evidence was in the atmosphere and
ragardlaas_ of the commission of those acts of which the coui't would take
cognizance, the faeliné of the puplic was atrong; ;

. gince Gov, Brown has rela.ted-sscre;, higtrory in his public argumsnt
vefore me, T may state that Friday night vefore the verdict was expected
Saturday, "I had the Sheriff to call at the Mansion and :anulrad whether
hé ﬂnviﬂj-.l')a'tﬂd troubla, This was aSter many people had +told me of pos—
sivle danger and an editor of & lea.d:.ng newspap er indicated' nis an‘l:iaipé.tian
of truu‘bla_. ‘The Sheriff st-a.ted ne th ought his d.e;puties could ayert a.n;.r
diffioul‘i;y. Judge Roan ﬁalerhoned me that he had arranged for the def end-
and to be absent when the verdict was rendered. I.ilcé Gov, Brown, I :
entered into commnication with the Colonel of the Fifth Regimenty WhO
stated he would be ready if there were neaessiu:,r. ‘:\‘9? . :

I was leaving on Sa.tm:daar, the daa' the verdict wagfmecteﬁ, for
Colorado Springs to a.ttencl the w Cungress of the Governora. and

did not wish to be absment il my presem:e were necessary, 1 have nm': the

original order prepared by me at the time, in the event there werse & nec—

essif}r for it, T becams convinced there would oe slight chance for an:,r
use of force and therefore Tilled Iy engagement in Colorado,

Judge Roan, in the exexcise of precaution, requested that both
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counsel and defendant De apsent when the verdict was rendered, in order t9%

avoid anj’( possivle d.amonsu“a.tmn in the event of acqx:.'b-..al ‘(@
The Jury found the defendant guilty and with the exneptinn of de- OA/\\
monstration outside the court room, there was no disorder, s Q/),f
: .Hénce, it will be seen that nothing was done whnich courts of any ’O@)

State could corrsct through legal machinary.- A court must have something
more than an atmosphere with which 4o deal, and especi&lly when that at-
mosphere has been created t}n'ough the prooesses of evldenca in d:,sclosins
2 horrible crime, .

Ouxr Suj_:-re:ma Court, after carsfully considering the Widemeﬁju

demongtrations made by spectators, declared them without merit, and.f‘thia

regaxd. the urdarl:.r processes of om uIibuIlﬁlS are not su‘bject ta critif::iam.

RACIAL PRE:HJDIGE.

The charge agsinst the state of Georgia of racial prejudice is un-
fair, A aonspisunua{/j ewish family in Geqrgia. is dascamisd from one of tixe
or:;.g:.na.l colonial families of the State, Jews have been presidents of our
Boaxrds of Education, principals of our scxmals, layors of our cities,

and conspicuous in a.ll our commercial en'terpr:.aea.

THE FACTS I THE CASE,

any newspapers and nonwresidents have dmckimed declared that Frank
was convicted without any evidence to sustain t‘ne- :feré’-mic't. in ls-.ré;e meé.a—
ure, -b!mae gwing sexpression to thnis uttemce have not read tne xuzaEd !
wi&ence ana are uot acquainted .#itn tne facts, Tne sa.me'maaf pe said
regaralig sy of -I;nose whu are dmﬁﬂndlng his execu‘b:.an, : =

In my Judgment; no onue has a x':.gha to &én opmmn who is not ac-
quainted with the svi:ience in the caaa. end it must ue cunceded. tlaﬁ?"ﬁne Jury
ﬁhb saw the wiinesses znd beheld their demesnor ufnon +the stand are in the
best position as a genersl Tule to reach the truth, ;

T csé.nno-‘;, within the shu:cﬁ time glven me Lo decide the casey enter

into the details outlined in thousands m:; pages of t&a*:'.:lmon}r. I w:‘lll I
present the more salient features, crd have a right tc; ask that all perv

cons wWho &are intereaueu. in the ﬁetelmratlml of the mat n.-el, shall read

calmly and dispaaaione:tely the facts,
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THE STATE'S CASE, ‘b

The State proved that Lec 1, Frank, the General Superintendent of (Q

\

the Fectory, was in Lkis offme a little sfter 12 otolock on the 26th day

of April; 1915, and he admitted having ﬁﬂid Hary Phs,gan, $1,20, veing the
wages dué her for one c?.éar's work, She agked Frank \&h_atl:zer trhe metal hed
come, in order to know when she could return for work, Frank edmits this
and so far as is known, he was the last one who saw her alive, ' At i;hreé
otclock the next morning (Sunday), Yewt Lee, the ﬁigh wa,wl“.n'sn, Tound in

s " / ,ﬁ{a;qnhﬂ_iﬂ
the basement the body of Laxry Fhage.n sbum::rled to death by & cord’ waieh—wae
kept generally in the Hetal Rcom, which is on Frank'!'s floox, She hed &
cloth tied around her head which was torn from her underskirt, Her drawers
were ei'f:-hex*ripped or cu‘ﬁ and some"clood and'urine were upon them, L:—{er
eye was very black, indicating a 'blo:w, and there was & out 2% inches in
length about four inches sbove the ear and to the left theréof; which ex~
tended Lhrough the scalp to the a:kculi The County Physician who axam::.neci
her on Sunday morning deofarad nobﬁglerce to the parts and the bload was
characteristio of menstrual flaw. mere Were no ex.tes nal signs of :Lape.
The bod‘,r ?_!;.Euﬁﬂt mutilated, the wounds the:r:aor being on the head and soratoh-
és on the elbow, and & wo#nd anout twe inches velow the knee, | _ .

- The Sta:l:.e showed. thet Liar:;.r Phagan had éaten her dinner of bread

and cabbage at 11 '50 otclock and had'céu.xght the car to go to Lhe Pem;,il
Factory Wﬂic": would eneble ner to arrive at the Factory within the neigh-

= ¥

bornood of about thirty minutes, The element of exact time will e

discussed later, 5

Dr, Hexrisy the Secretary of the State Board of Health, and an ex-
pert in this line; examined the contents oi“ ary Phﬂgan‘ﬂ‘_atomh ten d:.-.-:;fs
£x after her burial and found from the state of the‘digeéﬁ.ion of the cab-

ba-gé and bread, {ﬁat ghe must heve been killed within_about thirty min-—

utes after she had eaten the mesl,
Wewt Lee, the negro night watchman, tegtified that Frank had"told

me to be back at the Factory at 4 olclock Saturdsy ternoon‘i snd when
hetcame up s‘t‘.ﬁira to rapo_u, Travk rubbing his hends! met Newt Lee and

m&m&ﬂ told hi% to "go 151f.'mu, and have & gond time until 6 otclouck"y

e

A
*

Wnen Lee Te—

ar

turned, gwrank cl-_-a,ngefthe glip in the Time Clﬂckjmﬂ.nifeﬂ";lnr nervousness

althounh Lae 5&1{1 he would pzafcr to lle down and EleP.

2
O,

%
o,
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and teking & 1onzrt ime than'u;ual, @

When Frenk welked oub of the front door of the Factory, ne met & (QO
man nemed Gantt, whom he had discherged a short time before, Frank locked K/\é
frightened, his exp" enation oelng thet he anticipated herm, Gantt de- /)'f
clared he wished to ga‘k. go up stairs and ée‘b twe pairs of shoes which O@)

permission Frapk finally granted, sta.ting that he thought they had been
ewept out, ' ‘ :

About an nour after this occurrence, Frank called up Lee over the
telephone, 2 thing he had never done beforé, and agked him if everything
wag all right at the Factory, Les found the douvble irmér doors locked, w
whicﬁad never fTound that way before, Su‘bsequenﬁly,_ when Lee was ar-
rested and Frank was requ.estéd b¥ the Deteciives to g6 in and talic-'ht'} flm
in order tc find what he knew, Lee says that I‘ra.nlcndr?pﬁed‘his head and
stated Vif vou keep that up, we will both go to'hell“_ A

On Sunday morning at about 3 o'élock, after Newt Lee, the night
watchman, had felephaned the Police ".:‘,ta-ﬁionnof the d.iscover:} of tke dead
bﬁd;; and the cfficers hed come to the Fa.oﬁory, they endeaveored to reach
Frank by telsphone, but could not get & respbﬁsa, They ﬁelephoned &t
7.90 Sunday mm-n.mg and told TFrank that they wented him to come d-::wn to
the Fa.ctu::y and when they cama for him, he was very nedvous and trembled,
The body at that time hed been 'taken 4o the Underteakers, and a.ccﬂ-rc'l.ing to
the sfr.r:.dnrce of the officers who took Frank by the undertakers es..-a.ola.ahu
ment o identify the g,irl ne (Frank) shoewed & éis:.ncla.na.tmn to loolc
the 'nod;r"a.nﬁ. did not go :i.n{:r:. the roon where J.t. laar, nut uu_ned E.WEE," at
the dool, Sty =

Frank had made an engagement on Triday to go to the Pase Ball
Geme on Saturdsy afterncon with his ‘Drﬁﬂlar“ln“lﬁ\“ DUt 'b"nc-ke-tha en—
ga.gement, zs he said in his at&tement, necause of ..ra f*nanc*al sta:be-

ment he had o mske up; while before the {,‘.oronez;‘s Juzy,; he said he
broke the engagement hécau;e of ti:nreatening 1.'°.'ea.t?n.<-ar. ,. :

The coﬁﬁen‘;ion of the State; as will hefea.f'tar be disclosed, was
that Pramk remained ot the Fectory Saturday afternoon to dispose of the
body of lMary Phagan, and that that was the z'éason he geve Newt Lee his

unusual leave of absence,
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The cook!s husband testified that on Sa‘-;urdw, the day of the mur=— (

o A g

dery e visited his “.:Lfe at the home o:{‘ iy, Selig, dafendar.t's fa*'her-ﬂ-a.n—la.\rl OK\
A
@

whare :E'raq:p:: and his wife were living, end that Frank ceme in to dinner and O’f
ate nothing, The negro cock of the Selig's was placed upon the siand and o@)
denied that her husband was in the kitchen ot all on that day, For pure
poﬂéa of impeachment,therefore, the State infrcduced an a.f:E‘ic’La,viﬁ from
thls cock taken by the Detecti{rea, end as she claimed under dure%s, which
ﬁemiéd to gubstantizte the s‘:.éry of her husband and which affidavit de-
clared that on Sunday morning after the murder, she heard .irs, Frank tell
her mother that Mr, Frank was drinking the nigh‘-.: before znd mede her gleep
on & rug and called for a pistol to shcot himself, because he (Frank) ‘had
murdered & girl, This affidavit was xswel relevant for purposes of =
+ peaclment, aithough, of mm-e-,' it hed no iegai piobat‘;f velue as to ‘Ehé
facts ecn%ainad therein, On the sténci-,‘thé célal: deciéed ‘éfmt she wes
coerced by her husbend and Detectives under threat of Lbeing iocked up
unless she gave it, and it was made at the Station House,; - The State
¥ proved it was giveﬁ in the pieaence of & 1awyér and szid that her denial
of the truth of the affidavit was because her wages had been increased
E:r the parent of lirs, Frank, o details are givén as to where the con-
versation occcurred between lirs, Frank and her Moﬁher, ‘nor is there any 5
explantion zs to how she hazppened to hear the converéa‘cinn; It will
be o2sily seen that the effect of the affidavit upon the jury might be great,

It is hard to conceive thsb any man's powexr of fabrication of minut;s da
details could reech that which Gonlé:r ﬁhﬁred, unless it ba-tl-le";:ru‘hh.

" The evidence introduced tended to show that on Sundey morning Frank
took out of the Time Clock the slip which he had admitted at that time was
punched for each half hour, and subsequently Frank claimed that scme punches
had been missed, The suggestion was that he hal either manip{al&'tad the slip

to place the burden on Lee, or was s0 excited as to ‘Egﬁuna.ble to read the =i

s
fion

slip correctly. \& J
_ The State introduced a witness, Monteen Stover, to prove that at the
time XoEk when lexry Phaga.n and Trank were in thne metal Rouu, sue was iu

E‘ra.m:‘a Office end be was a.bsen.,, althaug:h he had declared he had not left his



oriice, TNEE The Stmte showed tuat tne neir of lMary Phagan had been LL@

L

washed moxpinextarxsosmEs by the Underteker_wi%h pine tar ééap, wnich (Q

I : . ; (@)
would change its color and thereby interfere with tre a2bblity of the K/\é
Doctor to tell the similarity bepween the nair on the lathe and liexry /)»f
Phagants hair, ‘ O@

The State furiher showed a cord of the character whioh strangled
liary Phagan was found in quantities on "the Metal Room floory, and was
found iﬁ iessﬁuantitie_as and tl'x;n-cz_rh up in t.hé"'b&:.sameni,” " As to this
Detective Stﬂxﬁes {iéutifisd_, ¥I saw 2 cord like tna.t in the basement, :
but it was cut up in piedas. I saw & good many coéda“lﬂce that =211
over the Factory", : 3 s

Holloway testified: "These cords are all over the building and in
the basement®, - : '

Darley testified:to the same effect,

However;this contradicts the testimony that was presented to the
J%fﬁlutlan.

-I-v-p-r-e:u:ed to the Jury that witnesses for the defendant, under the
suggestion of al%;ésld change their testimony 80 that it might. not
operate against the ﬁefandant :

I have not emumerated 21l the suspiocious circumstances urded by |
the State, put have mentioned what have api:seéreél to we the most prominent
onegd, Where I have not mentioned the more prominent ones, an iﬁsﬁection
of record feils to mwaintain the conterdion, £
: It is ér}.ntended thet 2 lawyer was engeged for Frank at the Station
House before he was srrested, This is replied to by the defense that &

e friend had engaged counsel withi:-ﬁt Frank!? s knowledge, and the lawyer

advised Frank to meke full _s't.ateman‘c. to the Detectives.

JIii CONLEY,

The meost startling and gpectacular evidence in the case was that EL
given by & negro,' Jim Conley,; & ma.n 29 yeaa:a of age, and one who frequen ly
had been in the dhaingang. ﬂonley had wo:cked. at the Factor}* for a.hou'h
two years and was thoroughly mquainted. with J.t. He ha& worked in the

besement about two monthe and h,a,d run the e;evatm apbout & year and a half,
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On Mgy lat he was zrrested by the Detectives, 2,

2

Neaxr the body in the pagement had been found iwo notes, one written”<§
on brown paper and the other on a leaf of 2 scratch pad, That written on OK/\‘
white paper in a negro's hand writing showed the following: Q/),f
"He said he would love me, lay down play like the night witeh, did 'O@)

it, but that long, tall black negro did boy hisselil,
On the brown paper which was the carbon sheet of an order blank

which hereaffer becomes important, =
headed "Atlenta, Ga. _ . ,90",was written in.2 negro's hand writing the

foilowing; :

Uifam that negro fire down here did this i went to mske water and he
puskes push me down a hole & long tall negro black did (hed) it, i write
while play with me®, ' ' e - 2=

The De}tectives learned zbout the middle of liay that Conley could
write, although at first he denied it,  He mede ®mux one statement and
three offifiavits which are move fully referred to in stabting the defend-
ent's casé.. The affidavits were tntroduced by the defendant undex noti-.ce
tc produce, ' i

By these affidavits there was admitted the pubstance of the evidence
that he delivered on the gtand, whioh in brief was s follows: '

Conley cleimed that he was asked by Frank to come to the Facltory on
Saturday and wa.téﬁ for himy as he i previously had done; which .‘ﬁa explained
meant ﬁhat Fra.ﬁk expected 1;,:: meet some woman and waen Fraz_ﬂc stamped his foot
Cc:-ﬁle;r was to lock the door leading into the f‘actor:; end when he whistled,
ne was to upen it - JCee e ' N
Gonley ocoupied a dark place to the side of the Elevator behind scme

boxes, where he would be iﬁvisi‘nie. o,
: Conley mentibned séveié.l ﬁ:enple, including mele and female employees,
who went up the stéz:s to the second floor where Frank! s office was loca.ted; 2
He said that Wary Phagan went upt the stairs and hé heard in a few minutes
foot steps going back to the Metal Room, which is from 160 o 200 feet from
the oii‘icé. He heérd a scream and t‘nen—he doae& off. -In a fe\‘-? minutes
Prank stemped and then Conley locked the door and then Frank whistled, at
whnick time Conley unlocked the door and went up the steps, Frank waé

shi vering and trembling and told Conley "I wanted to te with the little

girl and she refused me and I structlher and I guess I struck her too hard
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and she fell and hit her nead &gﬂinsﬁ something, end I do not know how ba,c@

¢

ghe got hurt, "Of course, you ¥now I aint built like other men®, QK\
Conley described Trark as having been in pos:l.u:.on which Conley thought /é/)
indicated perversion, but the facts set out by Gonley do not demand P d T
o : : _ %
conclusion, %

Conley says that he found Xary Phagan lying in the Metal Room some
200 feet from the office, with a cloth tied sbout ner neck and under the
head as though to catch blood, although there was no plood at ths plasca..

Frank teld Conley to ﬁEt & plece of cloth and put the body in it and
Conley got a piece of striped bed tick and tied up the beody in it and brought
it to a place & little Waff f1am 'thehdressing_room and dropx:e& :L“:'r and then
salled on Frank for assistance in carrying it, Frank went to nis office
and got a key and ‘unlocked the switch board in order to operate the eiava.—
tor, and he and Conley took the bod:r in +he elevator down te the ‘nasemeut i
where Conley rclled the body off the cloth, ‘Fropk returned to the first
floor by the ladder, while Conley went Ty the elevator and Frark on the
firat floor got into the elevavor and went to the second floor on which
the office is ,ocated, They went back into Frenk's pr:.vate office and
Just at that ti me Frank said "y God here is Fmma Clark and Corinthia
Hall“, and Frank then put Conley into the wardrobe. After they left :
Frank et Gonley out and asked COI’.‘I.lBJ if he ‘could write, to which Conley
gm;re an affirmative reply, DFrank then dictated the letters he:netufore
réfaﬁad to, Frank took out of his deak‘a i'oll of Exmwr green backs
and told him "Here is $200,00", but after & while requested the monéy
back and gob ite ;

One witness tesfified she Xxmugk saw S0mE negro,whom she did not
recognize,; sitting at the side of the elevator in the glunm. On the extra-
ord:.nam:.f motion for new trial, a woman, Wno was ‘LL"'llmpBE.‘.Gth. made a.ff‘:.c.aw.t
that on the 3lst of ligy -t'.hrough newspaper repurt she saw that Gonley
Slaimed he met Frank oy agreement at the corner of Forsyth & Nelson Stsh
on the 26th of April, 1913, and she became satisfied that she Baﬁv the two
in close conversatioz_l at 'tli&t place on that d&te, betwean lﬁ_,DC‘- and 11,00
otelock, ' | : o

Frank put his character in jssue and the State introduced ten wit-
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negses attackmg Frank's cnaracter, some of whom were :E‘w:uory emloyeaa,@

2

who testified that Frank's reputation for laseciviousness was bad and som e (Q

told thet he had been seen meking advances to lary Phagan, ‘whon Frank had OK/\\
prbfesséd to the Detectives; _eithei nd*& to havre knovm; 61"1'.0 have been Q/Zf
slightly acquainted with, Other witnesses testified that prenk had im- ’O@)
prbperiy ;gor_ia-in't:a the Dressing Room of the girls, Some'w:i.tnaﬂses who G
answer;ad on direot examination that Frark'!s reputation Tor _la.soiviousness
was bad, were not crossed sxﬁmine& as to detalls, and this was made the
suojaot of comment before the Jury. Sl S,

The sbove states very 'b:r:iefl:.r the gist of the State's case,omitting
many innidenta which the State claims would canfirm Frank!s guil't'r whan teken
in their entirety, e

DEFENSE,

The defendant introduced epproximetely one hundred witnesses &8 to his
good character, They included citizens of Atlenta, Gollega_mates at Cornell
and Prufeésors of that College, et o T

The defendant was born in Texas and his education was completed at
the Institution named, : '

The admlssion of Conley that he wrote the notes found at the bedy of
the dead girl, together with the pa.rt he edmitted he played in the transacts
ion, combined with his nistory and his e:r_pla.natmn as to both the wr:.u;.ng s
of the Notes and the removal of the 'body £t the basement, make the entire
case revolve a.baut him, Did Conley speak the truth? 2

Before golng into the varying a.nd conflicting affidavits made Dby
Conley, it is a.dviaabls to :cefer to pome incidents which cannot be recon-
ciled to Gonley's sntemeok ator:;r Wherever & physical fect is atated by
Conley, wh:i.ch is admitted, +his can be accepted, but under both the Tules
of :I.aw and of common sense, his statements canncu be received, excepting-
where olearly ccrrobovated fge admits not only his participatiun as an
ancessory, but also glibly confeaaes hie own 1nfamr,

One fact in the case,and that of most :,mpor't-an'b force in XEVIEWINE
arriving at the tru‘bh, contradicts Eo.nley*s testimun:r. 1t is disagreegble

to refer to it, but delicacy st yield to neceaait:,' when human life is at

stake,
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The mystery in the case is the guestion as to how Hary Phagan's é@
body got into the basement, Tt was found }fhé feet away from the ele— ’
vator and the face gave evidence of being dra.gged '!;hrough dirt and cinde:r:s,
She had dirt in her eyes and mouth, Conley tegtified that .‘ﬁe aﬁd. Frank :
took the body dowm to the basement in the elevator on the afterncon of April
26th, 1913, and leaves for inference thal F:.a.nk removed the 'b-::-dy 136 feet
toward the end of the building, where the body was found at a spot near
the back door which led out towards the street in tne vear, Conley
swears he did not return to the basement, but went back up in the elevator,
while Frarnk went back on the ladder, constituting the only two methods of
ing&ess and egressdtn the ‘ba.a;ameﬁt, _excepting i':hrough ths back doo:c_. ;
This wé.s"betwaen one and two -::'cln::-a::k on the afternoon of Apn'?z:.'l zé{;h.

Conley testified that on the morning of April 26th he weﬁt down
into the besement to relieve his bowels and utilized the elevator shaif
for the pui‘poae_. / 7 o .

On the morning of April 27th at 3 o'clock, when the Detectives came

down into the basement by way of the ladder, they inspected the px_-ezrﬁ.ses,-

including the shéft, and they found there human excrement in Rk natural

condition,

Subsequently, when they used the elevator, which everybody, inelud=

ing Conley, who had run the elevator for 1 years, admits, only stops by
.‘r_J.itt‘.ing thé ground in the 'ba,aémeﬁt the elevator é‘hfuct’(the excramént and
n;&glg& it, thus demonstrating that the elevator had not been used since

= | —

Cun:!.ey had veen there, Solicitor Gereral Dorsey, 1r, Howard and myself

vipgited the Pencil Factory and went down this elev'ator and we found it hit
the-but'tom, I went again with my Secretary_'n‘ri“oh the Banie result, :

Frark is delica:t:.e in physigue, whi&.{}onley is strong and powerful,
Conleyle ﬁlacfa for watching, as aesc::-iusc_i. Ty hiinself, was in the gloom a
few feet from the hafchwa;y,_'leading oy way of ladder to the basements Also

in .
he was.a few feet of tne ‘elevator shaft on the first flooz, Conley's action

in the elevator shaft was in e.ccardanca with his tes‘blmon:,r tnat he ma.da

u:rater twice against the door ol the elevatsor shatls oi: tne murning of the

26t iuétea&. 0f doing so iu the gloom of nig corner ceniud tne boxes where

he kept watch,
ma:c;. Phagan in soming down gtairs wes compelled to paﬂﬁ within a few

feet of Conle;y, who wa.s :i.mrisini.e to her and ia a :E'aw feet O the naml:mray,

“
S

%
o,
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Frank could not have ocarried her ‘down the ha.t‘-cl‘may, Conley might have d

so0 with diff:.culty. If the Eleva.tor Shﬂ.ft was not used by Gcnle:.r and. (®
Frenk in taking the body to the basement, then the explanation of Conley, O‘,\,
Who a-dm:.ttedly wrote the notes found by ‘"“w body,; cannot be accepted 5 Q?f
; In addition there was found in the Eelevz..uor Snﬁ#at 3 0%clock 'O@)

Sunday morning, the paa:aaol, which was unhurt; and a ball of cord which
had not been ma.ahed., - ’ :

Conley in his affidavits before the Detectives testified he wrapped
up ths 'bod.y in a o:l:aaus Ba.ck at the suggestion of Frenlt, ‘but on the tria.‘!,
he testified he '.uapped. u.p the r;rnd:f in a pieve of ced—tick“lll-ce the Bhirt
of the Solicitor General, The only reason for nuch cha.nge of tsstimom;,
unless it be the truth;_waa that a orocus sack unless spiit oﬁen would be
'ho_o small for the purp-;sa; If he-aﬁlﬂ opaﬁ the ;::“c:-cué }sé.clc_with a knifa,
this would suggest the use of a knife in outting the drsme*s of the girl

g SO the guestion E.I'IBBS whetﬂer ‘there was any DBd’-tin in the Pencll
Factoryf® and no reason can be offered why bed-tick s‘nould. be in a Pencil |
pactory, It has no function there, Had such unusual cloth been in the Fac-
tory, it aertainly must have been known, but hobcdjr iﬁ-:.s ever found it,

; Gonle:,r pays that after the deed was cnnma.tted., ‘which ever:,rbodar ad-
mits could not have been before 12,00, Frank suddenly said: “Here comes
Frma Clark and Corinthie Iial]f‘, and he put Conley in 2 wardrobe,

The uncon Tﬁdlﬂuﬂ& evidence of these two wit tnesses, and they are
unimpe&.che&., was 't.hay reached the Factory at 11,,35 A, E.i., “and left 1'f:. at
11,45 A ;.i,, and therefore this statement of Cbn?l.eyl ch;tl“;ir%dfy be accepted,

Gonley says that when they got the body to the Emdx of the elevator
in the baaansn‘f:-, Trank told him to leave the hat, slipper and piecge of
ribbon right there but he "taken the things and pitched them over in front
of the boiler" which was 57 feet away, L §

Conley says th&f-}‘r‘ﬂ;.nk told him when he watched for him to lock the
door when he Frank atf:'.mped and to opén the door when he whis%led. In other
words, Frank had made the spproach to the girl and had killed her before he
nad signalled Conley to lock the door, - |

- Conley says, "I was upstalirs between the time I locked tThe ﬁr:mr and

the time I unl::-cked it "I w:alocked the door bef cne I u‘ent up staa.rs"

This explanation is not clear, nor is 1t easy to comprehend the use of the
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signals which totally failed ﬁm:{r PUTDOSE, QZL
: 1t is curious during the course of the story that while Frank ex- ’(Q
plained to'sonles; about striking the girl when ghe refﬁaad. him anci Gonl%y’ O,(\
found the girl strangled with & cord, he did not ask Frank anything about /é/)
the use of the cord, and that Bub.j&ﬂ‘-i was not menﬁioned..' ’fo@

The woukd on Jlary Phagan was near the top of the head and reachead

the skull, Wounds of that cheracter

pleed freely, At the'pla-:.ce Gohley

says he found blood, there was no blood, Conley says there wes a cloth

tied around the hea.ci. as tnough to catch the biocd, but none was found

theres

One Barrett seys that on Uonday morning he found six or seven

strands of hair on the lathe with wh
on Fri&a@. The implication is that
received a cut by having her hee.d a8t
that no blood was found there, The
Phagan is desoribed as being chunky

fcrcea her w:l.th sufficient violence

ich he worked and which were not there
1+ was Mary Phagan's hair and that she
Tuck at this plece, It ie admitted
lathe 18 a.bﬁu‘t. 34 feet hlgh and Mary
in build, i blow which would have
against the smooth handle of the lethe

to have produced the wound must have been 2 powerful ons, since the da.fferr

gnce between her height and that of the mthe could‘ not nave accounted

for it. 1t was strange, therefo:r:es_

+hat there was & tote.l a.‘bsence of

blood and thﬂ.—tlFl‘E.nk; who was deiicsﬂ&.ta, could hl?.vé hit a blow of such

violence,

gome of the witnesses for the gtate testified the hair was like that

of llaxry Phagan, altnough Dr, Harris

compa.red Mary ]?haga.n‘s-ﬁair with that on

the lathe under z mieroscope and v.ras under the impressmn it was not Mary

th'.ga.n's hair, Tm.s will be the supject of further aawen‘l;,

Barret" and others sald they

toom, at which place Conley gaid he

"c‘aaqght they saw blood nsar the dressing

dragezed the body,

~ Chief of Police Eazwers-s&id te d4id not know whebther 1% was blood,

D Da%ectivaﬁstérnas se.id,"i.d.o not know that the splotches I saw was

blood",

Dstective Black says,"ir, Boarnes, who wag there with me, did not

call my atiention 40 any blocd splotahes!?.

TDectective Scobtt says: e went o the lie5al Room whnere I waB

shown some spobs supposed to be blood spois”,
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A part of what they thought to be baood was chipped wp in four éé

. L3 . ' = e
~ or five chips and Dr, Claude- Smith tesTifted that on ons of the ohips é(
he found,u.:-ld.ar a microscope, from three ©o five'blbod'ooxfpuacles, a <9()&\
= - - - - L] ﬁ
half drop would have caused it, QO

:ﬁ‘ranic says that the pé.:r:t of the splotch that was left after tie ’O/\
chips wers ‘f.a.::en up was examinsd_‘oy him with an elactﬁic_ flaaﬁ lamp, flog
and it was mot bloods g L e ;
Barreth, who worked on the Metal floor, znd who several witnesses
declare cla.ima&i a reward because he disso:vemé 't-he hair and Eioaci @m'
=oixsaid the splétcn was nobt thsre cn_Iﬂrida;,r,, and somé wi‘.:-nesées Sus—
tained him, SEs y ¥
There was testimony that there were froquent injuries at the
Factory and "ul:;od was nobt infreguent 1in the neigh*no:s:im od of-the ladies?
dressing :cuam_.ﬂbu- P Mmm (AT UE Ber =
Dr, Smith, the City Bacteriologist sald thav the presence of blood
corpuscles could be told for months after the blood had drisd, ALl of
this bore upon the guestlion as to whethex the murder ﬁanl'; place in the
etal Room, which is on the seme floor of Trank's O0fficae, .‘E:::aepting
near tlﬂ.s_liétal Roam at the place mentioﬁad whers the :qplotchasqvarzf.ad
according tn.[}hief :Eéswer‘s testimony, from the size of' a qu&-.r.-te:': to the
size of a palm leaf fﬁm, thare was no blood whaté';'ér.' T4 is to be Te—
marked that 2 white sﬁ'bé.tu.nca cailed naskoline used about the Factory was
Tound aprqlaad_crrei’ tha splo'bohea.- - : :
CONLEYS AFFIDAVITS,
The defense procured under notice one shabement and three affiday—
its taken by the Detectives from Conley and introduced them in ovidence.
The first stadent, dated May 18, 1013, gives a minute detail of his
actions on the 26th daar-c-f April and épaciﬁies the saloons he visited and
the whiskey and beer he ‘nought,-ancl mizmtel;{r itemizedﬁ the denomination
of the_m'one:.r he had and waat hé apent_for 'neew_-*,_ wiiskey and pa.n' BaUSAES.
This comprenends the whole of Affidavit 7l E € : e
On May 24, 1913, he made for the setectives an affidavit in which
he says that on Triday before the Seturday on shion the murder was commite
~

tg, This would appear strange, becauss

-

ted, wrank asked him if he could wrl
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Trank well knew he could write and had so known for months, but according %o(

.

Gonleyts affidavit Frank diotatsd to him practioally the contents of one N

of the notes Tfound by the body of llary Phagan, Frark,then, according %0 /é/)
Conleyls statement, took a brown scratch pad and wrote on that himself, fO/\
and then gave hilri:.n box of cigarettes in which was some mona}"and-Fra.;sknsa.id @

to him that he had soms \':a.ai’thy relatives in Brooklyn, and “why should e

heng",

This would have made Frank guilty of the contemplated murder on Friday
Waich was consumated Saturday and which was 8o unreasohé.‘ule, it could not
'bs--a.ecap_tedl. v I , SO : .

On May 28tn, 1913, Conley made for the Detectives anovher affidarit, =
‘which he denominates a;{ éecond and.'last statamanﬁr: In %&1&1’. he stztes that
on Saturfiey morning after leaving nome ha bought two beers for himself and
then went to a2 saloon and ‘mq 90 otas, with dice, where he'bought" two more
beers and a half pint of whiskey, some of waich he drank, and he met Frank

at the cormer of Forsyih & Helson Sts, and Frank asked him to wait until

he returnad,

Conley went over to the Factory and mentioned wyarious people whom he =
saw from his place of ssplonage going up the stairs to lir, Frauk!s office,
Then Frank whistled to him “nd he came up st&iréuaﬁd Frank was ‘Brémﬁliﬁg
and he and Fr;nlc went into "Eha private office_wheﬁ Frank exciaimed that
Mies Brma Clark and Corinthia Hall '#ére oc-mj.ng and concealed ﬁ&nle:,r in the
wardroba, Conley said that he si:a;,red in the wardrobe a pretiy goodhwhile,
for the whigkey and beer had gotien him to swaa.tlng. i‘h&n Frank aa}ced-'ﬁim
if he cowld write and yrank made him write at his dictation thres times and
Trank +old him he was gaing to teke the note and gend it in a letter to nis
people and recommend Conley to them, Frank said "ny should I hang?®

" prank took a cigavette from a box and gawe the box to Conley, and
when Conley got across the strset, he found it had two paper dcllaxg‘:ltwo !
gilver q{:,a:utera in it; and Gsnle:;_sa.id. Yoood luck has done struck me'_‘_
A'E- the Esex Saloon he-bﬁught one-nalf pint of whiskey and then got a bucket
wxwawx and bought ldcts, worth éf beer, I0 cts, worth of stove-wwod, &nd

a nicklels worgh of pan sausage and gave his old woman #3,50, He did not

leave home until about 12 olclock Sunday, On Tussday morning Frank cQme up
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gtaire and told him to be & ﬂo;:d DOF., On Wednesday Conley washed his é%ct:
st the Tactory and hung it on the steam pipe to dry, coc&aioning a J.ittia"(

e O
rust to get on it, The Detectives todk tne shirt and find:.ng no blood on ’9,
- - - : >
%

On the 29th of liay, 1913, Conley made another affidavit, in which O@)

it returned ity

he said that prank told nim that he had pickad up a girl and let her fall
and uﬂﬂlﬂ;’f hgllowed to nim that the girl was dead, and %old him to o to t
thne cotton bag and get a.pie-:sa of c:lutn., “and he got a mmﬁc pig wide
piece of cloth and ftodk her on his rig’.::.t shoulder, when Ehe‘got £00 ﬁ.aasv:r
for him and she slipped off when he éot to the Dressing Room, He called
Fra:ak__to nelp and Frank gob & key to the elevator and the two carried

the body dovm stairs and Frank told him 1:-0- t‘.aka the body back to the saw
dust pile and Conley says, he picked the girl up and put her on his should-
er, while Frank went back up the ladder, : : 2=

It will be ubseﬁed that the testimony and the appearance of the: girl
indicated that she was dragged throusgh the cinders and ﬁe‘lﬂ:ﬁ"ié on the floor
of ths basgement, yet'canle;-r says he took her on his s‘nouldei.

The affidavit further states that Conley book the cloth from around
har and took har'hat and slipper, which he had picked up upstairs, r::l.ght
where nher body was lvlng a.nd. b 0 dcpesisd urougnt them down ::r.nd 'U.nu-lﬂd the cloth
and brought them ‘back a.nd. throwed them on the frash plie in front of the
furnace, This was tha +ime that Conley says ﬁr__m:k mazde the exolamation
ot Toms Olarke Bad Gorintuis Hallal = 0 N

An important featurs in this affidavit is as foliows:

Conley states in 1;. thnat ir, Frark paid: fhere is $200,00 and Frank
handed the meoney to him",

A1l of the affidavit dovn to this puint 1s in type=writing, the
original was exhibited to me, At the end of the affidavit in hand writing
is wr tten the following: "While I was looking at the mbney in my hendsy
Yr, Frenk said, let me have that and I will meke it all right with you

L] -
Menday , if-:'[_live and nothing happens", and he tozﬁs t‘.&é m;:aney back and I
agked h:i,m if that was the way he done, and he szid he would give it back
Honday™, : : :

4+ will be noticed tnat the first gquestion which would arise would

be, what became of the 8200. This could not be accounted for.
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Therefore, when that query presunabdly was propounded to Gcrﬁ.ey, the iny (®
(0)

expla.nﬁtiun was that Trank demended it back, ’9‘
The Detsctives had Conley for two or thres hours on lay 18th trying Q’Zf
to obtain a confeasion, and he denied he had seen the girl on tne day of O@)

the murﬁer; The .ﬂetac-stives guestionsd nim closely fox -three nours on Way
2otn, Waew 18 repgated Tuas BLULY. On liay 27h, talked to nim about
five or six hours in Chief Lengford's office,. : ' SRS

Detective Scot.,, who was introduced by the Stabe, testiried vegarde:
:.ng Conleyls stateweat ‘and ariidavits as Toliows: o = ;

e tried to impress hl.n .%i—un ;L_’rl:_.?i;ﬁ would not have written
those notes on ¥riday, that that was not a reasonable gtory, That it
showed premeditation and that would not do, We pointed out to him way tne
Iirst sta.temeﬁt.wbuld'nnt tit, We ftold him we wanted anotaer statement,
He declined to make anotner statement, He sald ne had told tae :‘arut-.n.“,

" Qu day 28th, Chier Langford and I grilied hi::a-i'or five or six
hours again, end,ea.%uring to meke clear seva:‘é.l points which were far
fetched in nis statement, We pointed out to him that his stavement would
not do and wowld not f£it, and he then ma.detisatauement of HF.W 28th, after
he asfle?.gld that ais prwiuus stat ement ghowed deliberation and could not
be a.ceepted. He +told us nothing about Frank me.kmg engagement to :
stamp and for him to lock the door y and tolc_i nothing sbout Monteen Stover,
He Aid mot tell us about sseing ?a[afy Phaga.h. He said he did not see her,
He did not say he saw Quinn, Conley was a rather dirty negro when I first
saw him, He looked prettiy good wnen he testified here, ; '

~ ton Mey 29th, wo +alked with Conley almost all day, We.pointed out
things in his story that were improbable a.nd told him ne must do vebter
than t:né.t, Amything in his stary tnat looked to be out of place, we told
him would not do, We trisd to get nim to tell =bout the little mesh bag,
We tried pretty strong, He always denied eyvsIl lh&wing ssen 1%, He denied
knowing anything about the ma‘btér doyn in +the bpasement in the elevator :
ghaft, He never said he .-.rant dowvm there himself between the time he came
+g the FTactory and went &0 llontags, He never sald anythning a.buut T,
Fregnk naving hiﬁlher, or having hit her too hard, Or 2bout ..iputue;a from
the Metal Rm:m.l‘}epa.rtment. He sald there was no tno.u,__,ht of m.u::.ns’ the
vodye
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"On ey 18th we undertook in Chief Langfordls Office to convince him °

. z _ e
he could write, and we understood he said he could not write and we knew he O\
: A
could, We convinced him that we knew he could write and then he wrotel d%%:
In his evidence before the Jury in the re-direct examination, Conley 'Céb

thovght it necessary to account for the mesh bag: and for fhe first-time;
said tha%“ﬁary Phagan's mesh bag was lying on ﬁr. Frank's desk and iy, Frank
put it in the safe", This is the first mention of the mesa bag,

The first suguestion that was made of Frank being a pervert was in
Conleyl!s testimony, On the stand, whee he declarsd Frank said "he was not
built like other men', ; '

There is no prcof in the recoxrd of Frank being a pexvert, The sit—
uation in which Conler plécas him and u@on Conley's testimony must that_charge
rest, does not prove the charge of perversion 18 Conley's tesiimony be true.

. On argumsnt before me, I asksd wha?ﬂiigg Conley would mzke have to make
such a suggestion and the only reason given was that some one may have made Xig
him the suggestion because Jews wers circumcised,

Conley in kis evidence shows himsslf amendable to suggesation, He says;
"if you tell a story, you know you have got to chapge it, A lie won't work
and you know you have got to ©ell the whole truth", ;

Conley in explaining why his affidavits varied said: "The reason why I
told thet story was I do not want them fo know thﬂt_thsaa,other people passed
oy me for they might accuse me; I do not want pséple to think that I was

the one that done the murdex!,

AUTHOR OF THE NOIES,

Conley admits he wrote the notea found by the body of lary Phagan,
Did Frank dictate them? Conley swears he did, The State says that the
use of the word "did" instead of"done" indicates = white men's dietation,
Conley admits the spelling ﬁas his, The wordse are repeated and are simple, W
which characterizes Conley's letters, In Conley's testimony, you will find
freguently that he fses the word "did" and according fo calculaition submitted !
to me, he used the wor& "3id" over Tifty tiﬁes during the ftrial,

While Gonley was in jall charged with being an accessory, there was also

incarcerated in ihne jail, a woman named Annie llaude Carter, whom Co ley had
H] = nLey
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met at the Court House, She did work in the Jall and formed EX ac- é%b

quaintance of Conley, who wrote to her many ndsngthly letiezs, Théss .</

letters ore the most obscene and lecherous I have ever read, In these GE%S

letters, the word did is frequently employed, It will be observed that /59,)

in Conley!s testimony, he uses frequently the word "negro", and in <he 122~
%

Annie laude Cexrier notes, he ssys; "I have & negro watching you“;
The Annie Maude Carter notes, which were powexful evidence in
behalf of the defendant, and which tended strongly to show thet Conley

was the real author of the muvrder notes, were not before the Jury,

The work "like" is used in the lary Phagan notes, and one ﬁzil
£ind it frequemtly employed in Conley's tesbtimony, The word nplay"
in tne Hary Phagan notes, with an obscens significancej is similarly
employed in thé Annie Maude Carter notes, The same is‘tiue ag to the W
words Y"lay" and "Lo%e“.

In Conley's tesitimony, he umes ths words "make wabter® just as they
are used in the Hary Phagan notes, :

In Conley's ﬁeatimony ne says the word "hisself" canstaﬁtly,

It is prged by the lawyers for +the defense that Conley's character-
istic was to use double adjectives,

In the ﬂémy Phagah notes, he said "long tall negro, blackh, "long
slim, tzll megro", ;

In his testimony Conley used expressions of this sort, "He was a
4211, elim build heavy men? "MA good long wide pieve of cord in his hands®,

Conley says that he wrote four nntea; thnough only two were found,
These notes neve in them 128 words, and cgnieﬁ swears he wrote them in 2
minutes, Detective Scoit swears ne dictated eizht words to Conley and it o
took him gbout six minutes to write them,

The statement is made by Frank and that stamemenf is gonsistent . with
tne evidence in the racord,that the information thet Conley could write
came fiqm Trank wnen he was informed tnat Conley claimed he could not
write, TFrank says he did not disclose tnis before, beeause he &aa not
aware TUonley had been at the Factefy on the 26th day of April, and thexe=
fore the meteriality of whether Conley could write any more tﬁa:: any -
other negro employee, had not been sucgested to him, prenk says that

el )

Conley had signed receipts with ceriain Jewele

"

he gave the information thab
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WHERE WERE THE NOTES WRITTEN, O
A
£ the time of the txial, it was not observed that the Death Note §%?:
written on brown paper was an order blank, with the date line "Atlanta, "0,
Ga,, .., 180, Subsequenyly the paper was put under a magnifying 2lass (%
—,

and in blue pencil., it was found that one Becker's name was writiten there,
He had been employed at the Factory on the fourth fl&or. Investigation
was made and Becker testified that he worked for the Pemcil Factory from
1908 until 1912, and “ne ordsr blank was iFI0L8, During that entire time,
he signed orders for goods and suﬁplies, The brown peper bn wnich the
¥Death Note was written bears his signature, and at the tiume he left Atlan-
t5 in 1612, the entire supply of blanks containing the figures 190_, had
been = ‘tuéted, and tne blanks containing the figures nigl ", had elready
bezen pulbt in use, Becker mekes affidavit that before leaving Atlanta,

he personzliy packed up all of the dupliéate orders which had been filled
and performed tieir functions, and sent them down o the basement to be
purned, Wasther the order was carried out, he did not know

eyviaence

In reply to Phiss the Siatie introduced on the extraordinary motion,

the teshimony of Philip Chambers, who swears that unused order Dlanks ENEEE

entitled "Atlenta, Ga,, _ 3 191_ were in +ine office next to Frank's

: ————
office and that ne had xiwam been in the basement of the Factiory and
found no books or papers left down there for any length of tiéﬁ, but same
were always burnsd up,

This evidence was never passed upon by the Jury gg,develnped since
the trial, It was strongly corroboratiwe of the theory of the defense
+nat the death notes were writteén, not in Frank's office, but in the
basement, =nd espacially in vieﬁ of +he evidencs of Polibe Sergeant Dobbe,
who visited the scene of the crime on sunday morning, e followsﬁ .

nThis soratch ped was also lying on the ground close to the body,
The scraieh ya& was lying near the notes, Taey wexe 2ll right close Lo-
gether, There wes 2 pile of tr ash near the boil;r whene %his hat was énmm
found, and paper and pencils were down there too", -

. Police Officer Anderson testified:
"Tharea axe“planty of pencils and trash in the basement®,

>
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Darley testified: "I heve seen all kinds of paper down in the éi(
Qo

basement, Tie pepe» that note is written on is a blank order péd_ That

%
xind of paper is likely to be found all over the building for this reaﬁun, 1;9
they write an order and sometimes fail io get a carbon under it, and =&t 123
: . 7~
other times, they change the order and it gets into the trash, That kind (o

of pad is used all over the Factory,
- Over the boiler is & gas jet,

Another feature which was not known at the trial and which was not
presented to the Jury, but camé up. by extraﬁrdinary ﬁotiun, was regarding
the hair alleged to héve been found by Berxett on the 1a$hé. The ev=
idsnce on the %rial of some of the witnesses was that the hair looked
like that of Mary Phagan, It was not brought out at the trial that Dr,
Herris had exemined thé hair under a microscope and ?y takihg sections
of it and comparing it with Mary Phﬁgan's hair.tigiﬁnthat on the lathe
was not Mary Pﬁagan’s hair, aithough he said he could not be certain of Ity

This, hoﬁevar, would havs besn the highest and best evidence,

The evidsnce as to the prpbability of the blank on which the death
note was written being in the basement,and the evidence =s %o the hair,
would have dmmamdesc tended to show that the murder was not committed on the

; .
floor on which Frawk!s office was locaiad,

THE TIME QUESTION,

The State contended that lfary Phagan came to the office of Leo II,

Frank to get hex pay'at some time betweem 12,05 amd 12,70 and that Frank
?u"‘ Tk 5

had declared that he was in his office the ﬁhole time, B

o

Y

It is true that af the Coroner'a dwxyx Tngusst held on Thursday
after the murder (Pzge 364}, he s2id he might have gone back to the toilet,
but did not remember it, However, in scme of his teatimony, Frank said he h
had remained the whole time in his office, Ilionteen Stover swears that she ea
came into Frankk!'sffice at 12_05 and remained until 12,10, and did not see
Frank or anybody, She is unimpeached, and the only way to reconcile her
evidence would be that she entersd Frank's office,as she states for the
first time in her life, apd did not go into the inner room,where Frank
claimed to have been at work, If Frank wére at work at his desk, he could n
not be seen from fthe outer room, Monteen Stover said she wore Tennis

Shoes and her steps may not have atiracted him,
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However, the pertinency of Monteen Stover!s teastimony is that Hé@%L |
|

e

Phagan had come to get her pay and Frank had gone with her back to the '<29:

S (0)

lletal Room and was in process of killing her while lionteen Stover was in ’S:

IR : - . g

his office, and this was at a time when he had deckared ne was in Ais <%£

o 3 : = I ’O

office ! s

. ' @

Tue evidence looses its pertinenoy,if lary Phagan had not arrived
at ‘the time lonteen Stover came, What is tne eviuen&e?
' The Bvidence uncontracictea diselssss that Mary Phagan ate her din-
“ner at 11,30 o'elock, and the evidence of the street car men was that she
caught the 11,50 carg which was due at the corner of Forsyth & lizrietta Sta,
at Ry} 12,074, Tho distance from this place to the Pencil Fectory is
abouﬁ cne-fifth of a mile, t reguired from 4 $o 6 minutes to walk ta'the
Factory, and especially woulf the time be enlarged beeause of tﬁé crowds
on the streets on jemorisl Dag,

Whnile the street car men swear ﬁhe car was on time, and while CGeogge
Epps, & witness for the State, who zodse with Ea&g Phagan,-awears he left her
about 12,07 at the corner af Fsrayth & Marietta Sts, There'ia some evidenc)
to the_affact inat the car arrived amxitme according to custom, but might hawv
arrived two or three minutes before schedule time, If so, the distance '
would have placed ifary  Phagan at the Pencil Factory at some time between b oln'd]
12,05 and 12,10, lonteen St#ver looked at the clock and says she entered at |
12.05; A suggestion is made thst the Time Clocks, which wére punched by the
employees, might have been flast, This proposition was met by W, W, Rogers,
who accompanied the Detectived to the scens of the murder on Sunday morning,
and who testified (Pags 200), "I know that boith elocks were rJ.hlng, and I
noticed voth of them had the exact time", Therefore, liontsen Stover must
have arrived before UWMary Phagén,amﬁ while Monteen Séover wag in the room, i
it hardly seems possible undexr the evidence, that liary Phagan was at that
time being murdered, : t:

Lemmie Quinn testifies that he teached Frank's office about 12,20
and saw ir, Frakk, At 12,50, s, J, A, Vhite called to see her husband
at the Pactory where he was working on the fourth flcor, and left again
bdfore one olclock,

A% 12,60, =mccording to Denhiam, Frank came up o the fourth flcor and si

sald that he wanted to get out, The evidence for the defense tends to show
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that the time taken forqmmving the vody, according to Conley's descriptif

il e

was so long that it could not have fitted the specific times at which visi<{

tors saw Frank; 1t will be seen that wnen Hna, White came up at 1230 C%;
tha doors below were unlocked, ' Q/),f
Anotper feature of the evidence is that the eeeske—ei—ihs back door C&b

in the basement was the former means of egress for Conley, wiaen he'desired
to escape his creditors among the employes, On Sunday ﬁorning, April 27,
the staple of this door had been drawn. Detzective Staénes fuundjon the |
door the marks of what he thoughtaEEELbloody £i nger-prints, and he chipped
off two pieces from tine door, wiiich looked Lliks" DLODdJ finger—prints, The
evidence does not disclose further investigation 2s to whether it was blood
or notk, '

The motive of this murder may be sither Robbery, or Robhery and AmmEss
Assaul®, or Assault,

. There is no sugssstion that the metive of Trank would be TobbeIry.
The mesh Dag wﬁs in liary Pgagan's hands and wagdeacribed hy'Ccnley, in nis =
re-direct examination, at the trial for the first time, The size of the
mesh bag, I cannct tell, but since a vloody handerchief af Mary Phagan's
was found by hexr side, it was urged oefors me by counsel for the defense, #h
that ladies usually carried their handkerchiefs in their mesh bags,

1f the motive was assault, either by natural or ps*ve“ted means,
the physicians evidence, who made tne examination, deosgnot disclose its
sccomplishment, Perversion by none of the suaﬂeaﬁad émans could have occasi
gioned the flood of plood, The Doctors +eat1f1ed that excitsment mlghf hﬂwe
cecasioned it under certain conditions. Under the evidence, which 1is no» se
set forth in detail, there is every probability that the virtue of Mary
Phogan was not lost on the R6th day of April, Her mesh bag was lost. and
there can be no doubt of this, The evidence shows that GﬂnleJ was as de-
praved and lecherous & negré ag ever lived in Georgia, HE 1ay in watch :
and described the clothes and stockings of toe women who wsnf to tné .
: - P |
raetory. { GAF

Hig story necessarily bears the consbruction thav Ffaﬁk had an engesge

ment with lary Phagan, which no evidence in the case would juatlfy. If

Freck had an encafied-ginley to watoh for him, it could only huve vees
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Tox Hayy Poogan, since he ma&e ﬁo imoroper s gestion tc any othex femzfﬁb

on that day, én& it was undiaputea_thai many did come up pricr to 12,00 ‘<;)

colock, and whom couvld Frank have been sxpecling except Eary-Ph&gai under ’S:

Conleyte story, This view caunot be entertained, &s an ﬁﬁjustiﬁiéblg 4%:

reflection on the young zirl, - i 2

Wiy the negro wroite the notes is a matter cpen te conjecture, He

rad been drinking heavily thst morning, and it is possible thet he under-

tock to describe the oiher negro in the buildiné g0 that it would evexrt :
suspicions,

1t may be possible that his veusion dis correct,

Tne £estimony discloses that he was in the habit of ellowing men
to go into the basement for immoral pu:péseé for a 6oiaideraticn, and when
Wery Phagan passed by him close tc the hatchway léading into the basemen®

flieaet in the gloam and derkness of the entrance, he etfacked her, What is

the tr uth we mey never know, A %

JURY 'S VERDICT,
The jury which hesrd the evidence znd saw tie witnesses found the
defendant, Leo M, Frank,.quilty of murder, Tﬂey are the onesyunder our &
laws, %ho'aza nxxxgxichéasn tc weigh evidence and to determineqiﬁs prébar

"

tive value, They may consider i+he demeanocr of the witnesses upon the

3

stand and in the exercise of cormon senss will arrive with wonderful 2cé

curacy a2t the trubth cof {the contest,

JUDICIARY,
Under our law, the only authority who cen review tie merits of the
cage end question the Justive of & verdict which has any evidence to sup-

port it, is the trisl judge. The Supreme Court is limited Ty the Con-
stitiution and the correction of errors of law, The Sﬁpreme Court found &
in the trisl no erxvor of law and determined g8 & matter of law, and cor- i

;l rectly in ;;;¥r judgement, that there wes sufficient evidence to sustain
the verdiot, ' 5

= Sut under our Judiciaf system, the trisl judge is called upon to
exercise his wise discretion, and he cannot pérmit a verdict te stand
which: e belie%ea to te unjust, A suggestion in the order over—ruling &

‘mobion for = mew t¥isl, thet the Judge was not satisfied with the yexdict,

would demand & reversasl by ithe Supreme Court,
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Tn this connection Judge Roan declared orally from the bench that 4
he was not certain of the defendantts guilt - that with all the thought <29

%

2

e had put on this cese, he was nct thoroughly oconvinced whather TFrapk 1§
was guilty, or innccent - but that he did not have to be convinced - that | 1%:
the jury was cenvineed 2nd that thsre wes no Ioom to dount that - that Q%
he felt it his duty to order that the motiorn for & new trial Ee oyer—ruled,

This statement wes not embodied in the motion over-ruling new wrial,

Under cur statuts, in cases of conviction of murder on circumsfantial
evidence, it 48 within the discretion of the trial Jjudge to sentence the
defendant to life imprisonment (Code Section aai.'

Tae conviction of Frank was on cirzcumstantial evidence, &s tkhe
Scliciftor General 26mids in hie written argument, 4
3 Judge ERoan, h0wefei, misconstrusd his power, as evidenced by the
following charge to the juﬁy in the cese of the state agaﬁnst Franks

nIf vou believe beyond & remsoneble doubt Irom the evidence in this
cape that this defendent is cullty of murder, then, you would be awthorized
in that event ko sey, UWe, the jury, find the defendant guslty®, Should
you go further, gantlemen; end say notﬁing else in yéur vei&ict, the court
would have to sentence the defendant tc the extreme penelty of murder,
to-wit: "To beX henged by the neck until he is dead", i

2 Surelyjﬁiudgs Roan entertained the ex%rems.dnﬁbt indicated by his

statement ord had femembered the power granted bim by ¥he Code, he would

w

have sentenced the defendent to life imprisonment, G

In & letter written to coumsel ke B&ys, T ghall aak'%hﬂ Brison
Gﬂmmissicnltn recommend to the Governer to comnute Frank!s sentence to life
imprisonﬁment =%#%%  T¢ ig possible that I showed undue deference to thenanr
5ury_in this case, when I allowed the verdiét to stand, They sald by their
verdict that they had found the truth, I was ina atate of uncextainiy,
znd so expresesed mysell zzraszze Affen maﬁy months of continued aelibér—
étion, 1 am atill wncertain of Frank's guilt, This state oé unﬂertainty-

is lergely due by the creracter of the Conley testimony, by which the

verdict was largely reached,

urnervefore, L consider this & O&SS in whioh *he chief megistrate

of the State should sxexnt every evfort in ascertaining the truth, Tae
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execution oftzzrperscn, whose guiit ﬁas not been satisgfactorily proven, é%%
ig ftoo herritie to conﬁemplate. ‘T do not believe that = person should = Q
meet with the extreme penelty of the law, until the Court, Jury andd Gov-
ernor shall haye all been-aatisfied of that pérson‘a gullt, Henoey &t ; 1%23
the proper time, I shall exprass‘and enlarge upen theaefviews, dirécfly

to the Priscn Commission and Governor, '
"However, if for eny oaude I am prevenied from doing this, you

are at liberty to use this letier at the hearing",

Iv will thus be observed that if commutation is granted, the ver-

diet of the jurv is not a$tackad, But the penalty is 1mpused for murder,

whlch is by the Sts nd which the uudge, except for his
miéeonception, would have imposed, Without attacking the Jury, o '53
of the courts, I would be carrying out the will of the Judge himself in
meking the Peﬁalty that which he would have made it and which he desires
it shall be made, : :

In the csse of Hunter, & white man charges with gssassinating two
whnite women in the City gf Sayvannah, who was'found guiltf and sénéenced
to e hung, application was made to me for cle@snay, Hunter was ché:zgéﬁﬁg,
with a negro with having committed the offence, and after he wes ooﬁvicégﬁ
the negro was écqu;tte&_ It was brought ouiqbﬁ éhe Bta¢emént éf the ﬁegro
that another negro who was half-witted committed tke G =me but no credence
was given to the story, znd he wes nob indicted,

The Judge and Selicitor General refused to recommend clemency, bub
upon a review of the evidence, and because of the facts and at the ingtance
of the leading citizens of SEvannahs who wEre doubtful of bne guilt of -
defendant; 1 commuted the Bentance,\in crder that there should Te no'poa—
Eibl&lityrcf the execution of an innocent man, This action'hzs met with
the entire approbation of the pecple of Ghafham gounty,

Tn the case of John Wright in Fspmin Gbunty, +wo men went to the

mountain home of & citizen, called “him out end ghot him and were trampling

on nis body, waen his ﬁife;Wlth a tebe in hex ﬁrmg, ceme out to defend hex
nusbend, One of the men struck the babe with his gun and killed if,

Wright was tried, found guilty and sent encﬂd tn deatn, Evidence was intro-

duced as Ho nis bOIIO“lR& 2 gun, His threaus, hig escape aftexr the aqootina
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pecurred at the time he was ;ﬁ ;sca@e from the Fannin County Jall undex é%%
indictment for felony, : - ' <
T refuged to interfere unless the Judge, OT Sclicitoxr, would recom-
mend interference, which they declined to do, 'Finally, when on the gallo&s
the Solici tor—general recommended 2 reprieve, which I.granted, and finallf
on the reéommeﬁdation of the Judge and Solicitor Generzl, &s expressed in
wy Order, I reluctantly commuted the sentence to 1life imﬁrisunment, Thé
doubt was suggested zs to the identity of +he criminal and as to the credi-
pility of the testimony of pre&uﬁiceﬁ witnesses, The crime was &8 hein;v
ous as this one and mozre C. . -
In the Frank case e matters:fiﬁLFE?ElDPEd gince the trisl which
did not come before the jG;y, fouwis: e testimony of Becker, indicating
that the death notes were wmitﬁeﬁ in‘fhe bagement, and the tsétimcﬁy of
Dr, Herris, that he was under the impression that the hair on the lathe
was not fhat of Mary Phagan, snd thus ten&ing td show That the crime was
not committed on the Tloor oz Frankls oirice, ' bE
Wnile mede the suuject ci'an extraéxdlng motiovn Tel & uew tiial,

1% 15 weil kauwa toat it 18 slnost & practical iuwpossiplilTy to nave
'll, a'_«_\"""

2 véi'dict_ set a.aidé by thie i:moaedﬁre. {

The evidence might not have chenged the verdict, but it might have
caused the Jjury to render & verdict with the recommendation to mercy.

In aﬁy event, the performﬁnce of my duty under the Consttituinn,

ie a matter of my consclence, The responsibility rests where the power
is repdsed. Fudge Roan, with that awful ﬂenaé of responsibility, which
protably came oyer himhs'he thnugﬁt of that Judge before whom he would

ghortly sppesr, calls ©o me from enother wordd tu request tual I do Tuab Wi

aenay

vhiocn ne should heve mmnm done, I can endure misoonsszuction, ebuse and

condemnaticn, but I cannot gtand the ccnstent companionship of an accusing

conseiencé, ﬁhich would remin& me in every thought that I, &5 Goyernor
of Georgia, failed to do wuat I thought to be rights There is a territory

and = : ]
"peyond A REASOIALLE TOUET A 2bsolute certainty", for which the law provides
in allowing life imprisonment instesd of execution, Thls c&s8e hasg been
' ' - trial S ey . 4
marked by doubi, The Judge doubted. Two Judges of the Suppeme Couxrt

of Georgia doubted., Two Judges of the Supreme Court of the United States
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